
 

August 25, 2025 

To,           To, 
The Corporate Relations Department       The Listing Department 
The BSE Limited         The National Stock Exchange of India Limit  
Department of Corporate Services       Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,        Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001.        Mumbai – 400051 
Ref:- Scrip ID:- 500126            Ref:- Scrip Code:- PGHL 
       
Dear Sir / Madam, 
 
Sub: Re-submission of Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 
 

With reference to our earlier communication dated August 6, 2025, we would like to confirm that 
the Company had duly submitted the Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 
along with the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2024-25, with 
the stock exchanges within the prescribed timelines. 
 
However, it has come to our notice that the Annual Report is currently not appearing under the 
“Annual Report” section on the stock exchange portals. To ensure proper visibility and compliance, 
we are re-submitting the Annual Report under the “Annual Report Submission” section. This step 
is being taken purely as a matter of caution and good governance, to ensure that the Annual Report 
is correctly displayed and available to the public and investors as required.  
 
We request you to kindly take the same on record and acknowledge the re-submission. 
 
Thanking you. 
For Procter & Gamble Health Limited 
 
 
 
Zeal Rupani  
Company Secretary 
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty-Eighth Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the 
Company will be held on Friday, August 29, 2025, at 
11:00 a.m. through video conference / other audio-
visual means, to transact the business mentioned in 
the notice. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed 
to be the Registered Office of the Company at P&G 
Plaza, Cardinal Gracias Road, Chakala, Andheri East, 
Mumbai – 400 099.

Ordinary Business

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial 
Year ended on that date, together with the 
Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

2.	 To confirm payment of interim dividend and 
to declare final dividend for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2025.

3.	 To appoint a director in place of Ms. Seema 
Sambasivan, Non-Executive Director, who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for 
re-appointment.

Special Business

4.	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), if any, the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 To appoint M/s. Dholakia & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, as secretarial auditors for 
a period of five years effective April 1, 2025

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules 
made thereunder, and in accordance with 
regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
read with circulars issued thereunder from time 
to time and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), M/s. Dholakia & 
Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, 
(Peer Reviewed firm) be and is hereby appointed 
as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a 
period of five consecutive years, effective April 1, 
2025 (i.e. from Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial 
Year 2029-30), on such terms & conditions, 
including remuneration as may be determined by 
the Board of Directors.”

5.	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), if any, the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

	 Ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
section 148 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed 
thereunder (as amended from time to time) and 
other applicable laws, such other permissions 
as may be necessary, the Members hereby ratify 
payment of remuneration of ̀  500,000 per annum 
plus out of pocket expense payable to M/s. 
Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, who 
are appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company to conduct audit of the cost records 
maintained by the Company for the Financial 
Year 2025-26.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Zeal Rupani

 Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2025

Registered Office:
P&G Plaza,
Cardinal Gracias Road,
Chakala, Andheri East,
Mumbai 400099

NOTES

1.	 The relevant Explanatory Statement in respect 
of business under Item nos. 4 and. 5 are annexed 
hereto and forms a part of this Notice.

2.	 Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of 
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
‘[the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]’ in respect 
of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at 
the ensuing 58th AGM, forms an integral part of 
this Notice.

3.	 Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by 
SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ 
P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI 
Circular”) and other applicable circulars and 
notifications issued (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force and as amended from time 



Notice2

Procter & Gamble Health LimitedHealth

to time, companies are allowed to hold AGM 
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio 
visual means (OAVM), without the physical 
presence of members at a common venue.

4.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with the 
above-mentioned circulars of MCA, the 58th AGM 
of the Company is being conducted through VC. 
The Company has appointed National Securities 
Depositories Limited (‘NSDL’) for providing 
facility for voting through remote e-Voting, for 
participation in the AGM through VC facility 
and e-Voting during the AGM. The procedure 
for participating in the meeting through VC is 
explained at Note No. 11 below.

5.	 As the AGM shall be conducted through VC, the 
facility for appointment of Proxy by the Members 
is not available for this AGM and hence the proxy 
form and attendance slip including route map are 
not annexed to this Notice. However, the bodies 
corporate are entitled to appoint authorized 
representatives to attend the AGM through VC, 
participate thereat and cast their votes through 
e-Voting. 

6.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to scrutinizer@dholakia-
associates.com with a copy marked to evoting@
nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders can also 
upload these documents by clicking on “Upload 
Board Resolution / Authority Letter”  displayed 
under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

7.	 In accordance with, the Circular no. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 issued by MCA 
dated October 3, 2024, the financial statements 
(including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor’s 
report or other documents required to be 
attached therewith), including the Notice of AGM 
are being sent in electronic mode to Members 
whose e-mail address is registered with the 
Company or the Depository Participant(s).

8.	 The Notice of this AGM and the Annual Report 
for the Financial Year 2024-25, is available on 
the website of the Company at https://www.

pghealthindia.com/, on the website of Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and on the website of 
NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

9.	 The Members can join the 58th AGM through 
VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before the time 
scheduled to start the meeting, by following the 
procedure mentioned in the notice. Participation 
of members through VC/OAVM will be reckoned 
for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per 
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10.	 Members may kindly note that they are entitled 
to be furnished, free of cost a printed copy of 
the Annual Report of the Company, upon receipt 
of requisition at any time. Members holding 
shares in physical form, who have not registered/
updated their respective e-mail addresses, 
are requested to get their email Ids registered 
with the Company by writing to the Registrar, 
Kfin Technologies Limited. Members holding 
shares in dematerialized form, who have not 
registered/updated their respective e-mail ids, 
are requested to do so with their respective 
Depository Participants.

11.	 The procedure and instructions for Members 
relating to remote e-Voting are as under:

	 The remote e-Voting period commences on 
Tuesday, August 26, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. and ends 
on Thursday, August 28, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. During 
this period, Members of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on Friday, August 22, 2025, may cast 
their vote electronically. A person who is not a 
member as on the cut-off date, should treat the 
Notice for information purpose only.

	 The e-Voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a 
resolution is casted by a Member, he/she shall 
not be allowed to change it subsequently. 
The Company has appointed M/s. Dholakia & 
Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, 
represented by Mr. Nrupang B. Dholakia and in 
his absence Ms. Michelle M. Martin, designated 
partners, to act as the Scrutinizer, for conducting 
the scrutiny of the votes cast. The Members 
desiring to vote through electronic mode may 
refer to the detailed procedure on e-Voting given 
hereinafter.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained 
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

A.	 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

	 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below.

	 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

	 a)	 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of 
shareholders

Login Method

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

1.	� For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit 
Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received 
on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting.

2.	� Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 
e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.

3.	� If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

4.	� Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Type of 
shareholders

Login Method

5.	� Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience.

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /
Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 
on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user 
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 
e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is 
in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers.

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting.

		  Note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forgot User ID and 
Forgot Password option available at abovementioned website.

http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
http://www.cdslindia.com
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and 
CDSL:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with NSDL

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evoting@nsdl.com 
or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities 
in demat mode 
with CDSL

Members facing any technical 
issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com or contact at 
toll free no. 1800-21-09911

b)	 Login Method for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securities 
in physical mode.

	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://
www. evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen.

	 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL 
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https:// 
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding 
shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical

Your User ID is:

a)	� For Members 
who hold 
shares in 
demat account 
with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID 
is IN300***12******.

b)	� For Members 
who hold 
shares in 
demat account 
with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your 
Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your 
user ID is 12**************

c)	� For Members 
holding shares 
in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by 
Folio Number registered with 
the company

For example if folio number 
is 001*** and EVEN is 
134839 then user ID is 
1348390001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders are given below:

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, 
then you can use your existing password to 
login and cast your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the 
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. 
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, 
you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your 
password.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www/
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How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
registered with the depositories or the Registrar:

1.	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account 
or with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 
email sent to you from NSDL in your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. 
a .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 
8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The 
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’.

2.	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow 
steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

3.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received 
the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password:

	 a.	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” 
(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available 
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 b.	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 
holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 c.	 If you are still unable to get the password 
by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning 
your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered 
address etc.

	 d.	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

	 e.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree 
to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box.

	 f.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

	 g.	 After you click on the “Login” button, home 
page of e-Voting will open.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of email ids 
for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please 
provide Folio No., name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to investorgrievance.im@pg.com

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please 
provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), name, client master, copy 
of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
to evoting@nsdl.co.in. If you are an Individual 
shareholder holding securities in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode.

3.	 Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a 
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user 
id and password for e-voting by providing above 
mentioned documents.

4.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories 
and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and 
email ID correctly in their demat account in order 
to access e-Voting facility.

It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login 
to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. In case 
of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl. com or send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

http://www/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:investorpghh.im@pg.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Step 2 : How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL 
e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able 
to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle.

2.	 Select EVEN-134839 to cast your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period of the Company.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting 
page opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options 
i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote 
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes 
casted by you by clicking on the print option on 
the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

The instructions for members for e-voting on the 
day of the AGM are as under:-

a)	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM 
is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

b)	 Only those Members / shareholders, who will be 
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

c)	 Members who have voted through Remote 
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the 
AGM.

d)	 The details of the person who may be contacted 
for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same 
person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

Instructions for Members for joining the 58th Annual 
General Meeting through VC are as under:

1.	 Members will be provided with a facility to 
attend the Annual General Meeting through VC 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members 

may access the same at https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com under shareholders/members login by 
using the remote e-Voting credentials. The link 
for VC will be available in shareholder/ members 
login where the EVEN (134839) of Company will 
be displayed. Participation of members through 
VC will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum 
for the AGM as per Section 103 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Members are encouraged to join the 
Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

2.	 Further, Members will be required to allow 
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

3.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from 
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience 
Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

4.	 Shareholders who would like to express their 
views/have questions, may register themselves 
as a speaker by sending their request in advance 
mentioning their name, demat account number/ 
folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at 
investorgrievance.im@pg.com from the date of 
this notice up to August 26, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST). 
Those Members who have registered themselves 
as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ask questions during the AGM. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the 
number of speakers and number of questions 
depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

General Instructions to Shareholders:

1.	 During the AGM, the Registers to be maintained 
under the Companies Act, 2013, shall be available 
for inspection by the Members in electronic 
mode with NSDL.

2.	 The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, 
shall be placed on the website of the Company 
and on the website of NSDL within two working 
days of conclusion of the AGM and shall be 
communicated to BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited. Transcript of the 
AGM shall be made available on the website of 
the Company, within one week from conclusion 
of the AGM.

3.	 SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent 
Account Number (“PAN”) for all transactions in 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:investorgrievance.im@pg.com
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the securities market. Members who are holding 
shares in dematerialized form are requested 
to submit their PAN details to their respective 
DP. Members holding shares in physical form 
can submit their PAN details to the Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (“RTA”),  
M/s Kfin Technologies Limited.

4.	 As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
securities of listed companies can be transferred 
only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st 
April, 2019, except in case of request received 
for transmission or transposition of securities. 
Further, SEBI in continuation of its efforts to 
enhance ease of dealing in securities market 
by investors vide its circular dated January 
25, 2022, has mandated the listed entities 
to issue securities for the following service 
requests only in dematerialized form viz, 
Issue of duplicate securities certificate; Claim 
from Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/ 
Exchange of securities certificate; Endorsement; 
Transmission; Transposition, etc. For the purpose 
of the same, after due verification, registrar and 
transfer agent/ issuer companies shall retain 
share certificates and process the service 
requests by issuing letter of confirmation, valid 
for a period of 120 days. As per the process, 
shareholders are required to submit their demat 
requests within this validity period, failing which 
the Company shall credit the securities to a 
suspense escrow demat account of the Company.

Instructions related to payment of Dividend to 
Shareholders:

5.	 The Register of Members and the Share Transfer 
books of the Company will remain closed from  
August 23, 2025, to August 29, 2025 (both days 
inclusive), for the purpose of determining the 
names of Members eligible for final dividend on 
Equity Shares, if declared at the ensuing 58th  
Annual General Meeting.

6.	 The final dividend on Equity Shares for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, as 
recommended by the Directors, if approved at 
the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on or 
before September 25, 2025, to beneficiaries 
holding shares as on August 22, 2025.

7.	 In line with the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (“SEBI”) directives, the Company is required 
to update bank details of the Members of the 

Company to enable usage of the electronic mode 
of remittance for distributing dividends and other 
cash benefits to its Members. In this regard, 
Members holding shares in electronic form are 
requested to furnish their bank details to their 
Depository Participants. Members holding shares 
in physical form are requested to intimate 
change, if any, in their bank details by sending 
duly  signed KYC updation Form as prescribed 
by SEBI, alongwith required documents to the 
Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

8.	 Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 
3, 2021 and relevant circulars thereafter, latest 
being Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/
CIR/2024/81 dated June 10, 2024 all the listed 
companies are required to record the PAN, and 
other KYC details of all the shareholders holding 
shares in physical mode. Shareholders holding 
shares in physical form with the Company are 
requested to update above information with the 
Company, if pending. It is hereby informed that 
shareholder will be eligible to lodge grievance or 
avail any service request with the Company/or 
its RTA only after furnishing PAN and other KYC 
details. Further that, for any payment including 
dividend, in respect of such folios, Company will 
be able to remit the same only through electronic 
mode. Members are encouraged to provide 
‘choice of nomination’ in their own interest for 
ensuring smooth transmission of securities held 
by them as well as to prevent accumulation of 
unclaimed assets in securities market.

9.	 The Company, with the help of the RTA and the 
depositories has dispatched reminders during 
the year to all shareholders who have not 
registered their KYC and other details, requesting 
them to update the same. For further details 
shareholders are requested to refer to the 
communication available on the website of the 
Company at https://www.pghealthindia.com/

10.	 Shareholders are requested to register their 
email address and mobile number with their 
depository participants for receiving intimations 
and regular updates from the Company.

11.	 Shareholders may note that, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
as amended by and read with the provisions of 
the Indian Finance Act, 2020, dividend declared 
and paid by the Company after April 1, 2020, is 

https://www.pghealthindia.com/
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taxable in the hands of shareholders and the 
Company is required to deduct the tax at source 
(“TDS”) on the distribution of dividend income to 
its shareholders at the applicable rates. In order 
to enable us to determine the appropriate TDS 
rate as applicable, shareholders are requested 
to submit the requisite documents which is 
put up on the website of the Company, in 
order to facilitate the Company to deduct TDS 
at time of final dividend. The said documents 
(duly completed and signed) are required to 
be emailed to Company’s RTA at einward.ris@
kfintech.com on or before August 20, 2025 in 
order to enable the Company to determine and 
deduct appropriate TDS. For any clarification, 
please write to us at einward.ris@kfintech.com 
or investorgrievance.im@pg.com.

12.	 Non-resident Indian Members are requested to 
immediately inform the Company or its RTA or 
the concerned DP, as the case may be, about the 
following:

	 a)	 The change in the residential status on 
return to India for permanent settlement;

	 b)	 The particulars of the NRE account with a 
Bank in India, if not furnished earlier.

13.	 As per Sections 124 and 125 of Companies Act, 
2013 read with Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, dividends which are not encashed 
/ claimed by the shareholder for a period of 
seven consecutive years shall be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF) Authority. Said IEPF Rules mandate the 
companies to transfer the shares of shareholders 
whose dividends remain unpaid/ unclaimed 
for a period of seven consecutive years to the 
demat account of IEPF Authority. Hence, the 
Company urges all the shareholders to encash/
claim their respective dividend lying unpaid 
with the Company, within time period detailed 

in Corporate Governance Section of Annual 
Report for Financial year 2024-25. The details of 
the unpaid / unclaimed amounts lying with the 
Company as on March 31, 2025 are available on 
the website of the Company. The shareholders 
whose dividend /shares as transferred to the 
IEPF Authority can claim the same from the 
Authority by following the Refund Procedure as 
detailed on the website of IEPF Authority http:// 
iepf. gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html. 

	 Members are requested to contact the Company’s 
RTA, M/s. KFin Technologies Limited, for claiming 
the unclaimed dividends.

14.	 Members are requested to address all 
correspondences, including Share related 
documents and dividend matters to the 
Company’s RTA, M/s. KFin Technologies 
Limited, Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial 
District, Nanakramguda Serilingampally Mandal, 
Hyderabad, Telangana – 500 032. Toll Free No: 
1- 800-309-4001

	 Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com  
Website: www.kfintech.com

	 Members are requested to quote their ledger 
folio numbers in all their correspondence to 
enable the Company to provide better services 
to the Members.

By order of the Board of Directors

Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2025

Registered Office:
P&G Plaza,
Cardinal Gracias Road,
Chakala, Andheri East,
Mumbai 400099

mailto:einward.ris@kfin
mailto:einward.ris@kfin
mailto:einward.ris@kfin
mailto:investorgrievance.im@pg.com.
mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com
http://www.kfintech.com/
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Details of Directors proposed to be re-appointed at the forthcoming 58th Annual general meeting

Resolution at item no. 3
Name of Director Ms. Seema Sambasivan
Director Identification Number (DIN) 10085866
Age 51 years
Date of appointment on the Board April 1, 2023
Qualification Masters in Science 

(Microbiology)
Names of other Companies in which she holds Directorships Nil
Listed entities from which she has resigned in the past three years Nil
Companies in which she is a Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer, 
Whole time Director, Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Manager

Nil

Chairman/Member of the Committee(s) of the Board of Directors of the 
Company

Nil

Chairman/Member of the Committee(s) of Board of Directors of other 
Companies in which she is a Director

Not applicable

Shareholding in the Company Nil
Relationship with other Directors, Manager or key Managerial Personnel, if 
any

None

Remuneration last drawn by each Director Nil
Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year 3 out of 3
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item no. 4

Pursuant to the Regulation 24A & other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) read with 
provisions of Section 204 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any (“the Act”), the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on May 29, 2025 have approved subject to approval of Members, appointment 
of M/s. Dholakia & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors for a period of five 
consecutive years, effective April 1, 2025 (i.e. from Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial Year 2029-30).

M/s. Dholakia & Associates LLP have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, 
if made, would be within the limits specified by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India. They have 
further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in term of provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies Secretaries Act, 1980 and Rules and Regulations made thereunder 
and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations read with SEBI Circular dated December 31, 2024.

The Board of Directors have approved & recommended the aforementioned proposal for approval of Members 
taking into account the eligibility of the firm, qualification, experience, & expertise of the Partners in providing 
Secretarial audit related services.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution at item no. 4 as an Ordinary resolution.

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 29, 2025, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants as the 
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26 at a 
remuneration of ` 5,00,000/- per annum plus out of pocket expense.

In terms with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in this item.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution at item no. 5 as an Ordinary resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 29, 2025

Registered Office:
P&G Plaza,
Cardinal Gracias Road,
Chakala, Andheri East,
Mumbai 400099
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The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 

March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL YEAR

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

`

Particulars 2024-25* 2023-24
934.17 1,151.26

Sale of products 918.09 1,129.49
311.62 293.51
234.41 200.98

Appropriations:
Opening balance in retained 
earnings 157.57 370.91

234.41 200.98
0.67

outstanding account 3.92 -

-

Closing balance in retained 
earnings 159.93 157.57

Earnings per share
Basic and Diluted 

`
141 133

Basic and Diluted 
`

141 121

*Financial Year 2024-25 is a 9 month period from July 1, 2024 to 

DIVIDEND

`

dividend of `

58th

`

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK, RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

of the evolving global trade policies. 

care, and a greater use of digital health technologies. 

and favor natural, transparent ingredients. 

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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and ethical sourcing practices.

Sources: 
Press releases of Ministry of Finance dated March 20, 2025 and April 
23, 2025; and IMF World Economic Outlook, April, 2025

FINANCIAL RATIOS & INDICATORS

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 % Change

turnover ratio
8.10 11.45 -29@

8.55 9.43 -9@

Net capital turnover ratio 3.00 3.77 -20@

1.46 1.63 -10@

Current ratio 2.44 2.39 2

6@

20@

10@

44^

@

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND GROWTH STRATEGY

, , and 
Seven Seas

`
`

operations.

4. Constructive disruption —
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choices.

launching of notable initiatives.

, recorded 

launched

Evion

Evion's

Naara”
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Recovery ka Saathi

in convalescence.

Note: P&G Health and Indian Medical Association partnered to launch 

Nasivion

Seveseas

interventions at trade and retail levels.

strong selling capabilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

asset value.

prior to their selection.

regulations.
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REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE 

To be alert to any situations or actions that may violate the law, the WBCM or Company policies, 
and to report them appropriately

To uphold our Purpose, Values, and Principles in our work and in the business decision we make

To do the right thing at all times

To follow standards set forth in the WBCM and the law at all times

To know and fully comply with the laws, regulations, and company policies that apply to 
the employees’ work

changes.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

a) Controls Self-Assessments (CSAs)

an annual basis across its various business 

adherence to standard control objectives and 

b) Internal Compliance Experts

guidance to ensure that business operations 

action plans to enhance the internal control 

and reported.

c) Governance Board
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d) Do the Right Thing Training

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY 
REPORT

Annexure I to 
this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

in India.

Report.

Annexure II to this 

.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

the footprint of its operations and to enable 

operations.

to this report.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & 
DEVELOPMENT

business results.
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various business processes.

facilitate sustainable practices. This includes 

`

Expenditure on R&D* 2024-25 2023-24

Capital - -

Recurring 261 386

Total 261 386

percentage of total turnover

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

`

For the Financial
Year ended 

March 31, 2025

For the Financial
Year ended 

June 30, 2024

earnings
4,660 5,421

outgo
7,049 8,013

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES GIVEN 
OR INVESTMENTS MADE

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for 

applicable accounting standards have been 
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period

and detecting fraud and other irregularities

concern basis

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ANNUAL RETURN

.

HUMAN RESOURCES

people to create a love of learning and resilience that 

goals.

1,326.

Annexure III to this Report.

@ 
.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

of their Board tenure. The Board places on record 
its appreciation for their contributions during their 

Independent Director as Chairperson of the Board 
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th

The Board is of the opinion that all the Independent 

evaluation process for Directors have been provided 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

the Report.

POLICIES

INTERNAL AUDITOR

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Shareholders at the 55th

55th th

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of 

appended as Annexure IV.

th

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

COST AUDITORS



Annual Report 2024-2518

Procter & Gamble Health LimitedHealth

placed for the approval of the shareholders of the 
th

MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
AND COURTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors place on record its deep 
appreciation for the co-operation and support of the 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Mumbai S. Madhavan
May 29, 2025 Chairperson
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2024-25

Dear Shareholders,

March 31, 2025.

advantage that can drive shareholder value creation.

Milind Thatte
Managing Director

ANNEXURE I
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SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I. Details of the listed entity

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1.

2.

3. 1967

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.
are listed

11. Paid up capital ` 16.59 Crores

12. Ms. Zeal Rupani

13.

 or on a consolidated basis 
basis

14. Not applicable

15. Not applicable

II. Products/services

16. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover): 

Sr. No. Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity

1. Manufacture and sale of health 
care products

Manufacture and sale of healthcare 

17. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s turnover):

Sr. No. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover contributed

1. NIC 21002

III. Operations 

  

Location Number of plants Total

National 1 9* 10

International - - -
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19. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Locations Number

5 countries*

b. What is the contribution of exports

c. A brief on types of customers

 inter alia

IV. Employees

20. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

S. No. Particulars Total
(A)

Male Female

No. (B) % (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A)

Employees (other than workers)

1. 225 161 64

2. - - - - -

3. Total employees (D + E) 225 161 72% 64 28%

Workers

4. 1101 995 106

5. 231 158 73

6. Total workers (F + G) 1332    1153 87%    179 13% 

Nil

21. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women:

Sr. No. Designation Total (A) No. and percentage of females

No. (B) % (B/A)

1. Board of Directors 7 2

2. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 3* 1

22. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23. Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

S. No. Name of the holding / 
subsidiary / associate 
companies / joint 
ventures (A)

Indicate 
whether holding 
/ Subsidiary 
/ Associate / 
Joint Venture

% of shares 
held by listed 
entity

Does the entity indicated at column 
A, participate in the Business 
Responsibility initiatives of the listed 
entity? (Yes/No)

1.

the global standards and practices 

2.
Overseas India B.V., The 
Netherlands

VI. CSR Details

24. (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes

(ii) Turnover: ` 918.09 Crores

(iii) Net worth: ` 536.96 Crores

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on 
Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder 
group from 
whom 
complaint is 
received

Grievance Redressal 
Mechanism in Place (Yes/No)

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Number of 
complaints 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution at 

close of the year

Remarks Number of 
complaints 

during the 
year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution at 

close of the year

Remarks

standards of  business 

-

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

33 1 - 44 9 -

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Value Chain 
Partners

7 Nil - 4 1 -

Investors 
contact details for 
investors and shareholders- 

.

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Shareholders 5 Nil - 5 Nil -
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26. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues:

S. 
No.

Material 
issue 

Indicate 
whether 
risk or 
opportunity 
(R/O)

Rationale for 
identifying the 
risk / opportunity

In case of risk, approach 
to adapt or mitigate

Financial implications of the risk 
or opportunity (Indicate positive 
or negative implications)

1. Plastic 
products have 

reusable; and to 
reduce the use of virgin 

respect to collection of 

Creating superior and sustainable 

and retail partners and create 

return.

processes to be put in place 

obligations in respect of 

2.
and 
Inclusion

Inclusion is good 
for our business 

better serve our 

attract, develop, 
and retain the best 

the broadest pool 
of talent available.

culture that understands, 

enhances shareholder value.

3. Being a good 

Therefore, it 

future. 

in India.

brands.
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

Sr. 
No.

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Policy and management processes

1.
cover each principle and its core 

Board?

2.
into procedures

3.
chain partners .

4.

5.
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Sr. 
No.

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

Governance, leadership and oversight

6. Mr. Milind Thatte, Managing Director

7.

8.

9.

10 If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

PRINCIPLE 1- Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, 
Transparent and Accountable



Annual Report 2024-2526

Procter & Gamble Health LimitedHealth

year:

Segment Total number of 
training / awareness 

programmes held

Topics / principles covered under the 
training

% of persons in 
respective category 
covered by the awareness 
programmes

Board of 
Directors

5*

Managerial 

6**

training

(by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, 

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where 
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed- Not applicable

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if 
available, provide a web-link to the policy.
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.

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law 
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Directors Nil Nil

KMP Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Number Remark Number Remark

Nil - Nil -

Nil - Nil -

of interest- 

8. Number of days of accounts payables [(Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods / services procured]:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

239 184

9. Openness of business

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties 
along-with loans and advances & investments, with related parties:

Parameter Metrics F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Concentration of Purchases

total purchases
Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Concentration of Sales
total sales

13 13
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Parameter Metrics F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Share of RPTs

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

PRINCIPLE 2 - Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by 
the entity, respectively

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 Details of improvements in environmental and social impacts

Nil Nil

- -

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? 

inter alia

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the 
end of life:

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities. If yes, whether 
the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to 
Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.
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PRINCIPLE 3 - Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their 
value chains

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees

Category

Tot a l 
(A)

% of employees covered by

Health insurance Accident insurance Day Care facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B / A) Number 
(C)

% (C / A) Number 
(D)

% (D / A) Number 
(E)

% (E / A) Number 
(F)

% (F / A)

Permanent employees (other than workers)

Male 161 161 161 161 161

64 64 64 64 64

Total 225 225 100% 225 100% 64 100% 161 100% 225 100%

Other than Permanent employees

Male

Total

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers

Category

Tot a l 
(A)

% of workers covered by 

Health insurance Accident insurance Day Care facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B / A) Number 
(C)

% (C / A) Number 
(D)

% (D / A) Number 
(E)

% (E / A) Number 
(F)

% (F / A)

Permanent workers 

Male 995 995 995 995 995

106 106 106 106 106

Total 1101 1101 100% 1101 100% 106 100% 995 100% 1101 100%

Other than Permanent workers*

Male 

Total

*

c. Spending on well-being measures towards well-being of employees and workers (including permanent 
and other than permanent) in the following format:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24
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F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

No. of 
employees 
covered as 

a % of total 
employees

No. of 
workers 

covered as 
a % of total 
employees

Deducted and 
deposited 

with the 
authority 

(Y/N/N.A.)

No. of 
employees 
covered as 

a % of total 
employees

No. of 
workers 

covered as 
a % of total 
employees

Deducted and 
deposited with 

the authority 
(Y/N/N.A.)

PF

Gratuity

ESI Nil Nil Nil Nil

3. Accessibility of workplaces

the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being 
taken by the entity in this regard:

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? 
If so, provide a web-link to the policy:

5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave:

Gender Permanent employees Permanent workers

Return to work rate Retention rate Return to work rate Retention rate

Male 

Total 

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees 
and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief:

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)
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7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognized by the listed entity:

Category F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total 
employees 

/ workers in 
respective 

category (A)

No. of employees / 
workers in respective 

category, who are 
part of association(s) 

or Union (B)

% (B/A) Total 
employees 

/ workers in 
respective 

category (A)

No. of employees / 
workers in respective 

category, who are 
part of association(s) 

or Union (B)

% (B/A)

225 Nil Nil 216 Nil Nil

- Male 161 Nil Nil 160 Nil Nil

64 Nil Nil 56 Nil Nil

1101 40 1120 41

- Male 995 39 1010 40

106 1 110 1

8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total On Health and 
safety measures

On Skill 
upgradation

Total On Health and 
safety measures

On Skill 
upgradation

(A) No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A) (D) No. (E) % (F/D) No. (F) % (F/D)

Employees (other than workers)

225 225 225 216 216 216

- Male 161 161 161 160 160 160

64 64 64 56 56 56

Total Permanent Workers

1101 1101 1101 1120 1120 1120

- Male 995 995 995 110 110 110

106 106 106 1010 1010 1010

9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:

Category F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total (A) No. (B) % (B/A) Total (C) No. (D) % (D/C)

Employees

- Male 161 161 160 160

64 64 56 56

Workers

- Male 995 995 1010 1010

106 106 110 110

10. Health and safety management system:

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? 
(Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?
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b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-
routine basis by the entity?

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work-related hazards and to remove themselves 
from such risks. (Yes / No)

d. Do the employees / worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare 
services? (Yes / No)

services.

11. Details of safety related incidents:

Safety Incident/Number Category F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil 2

No. of fatalities Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy workplace:
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13. Number of complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Filed during 
the year

Pending resolution 
at the end of year

Remarks Filed during 
the year

Pending resolution 
at the end of year

Remarks

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

14. Assessments for the year:

(by entity or statutory authorities 
or third parties)

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) 

conditions- Not applicable

PRINCIPLE 4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity:

stakeholder group:

Stakeholder 
Group

Whether 

Vulnerable & 
Marginalized 
Group (Yes/No)

Channels of communication 
(Email, SMS, Newspaper, 
Pamphlets, Advertisement, 
Community Meetings,
Notice Board, Website, Other)

Frequency of 
engagement 
(Annually/ Half yearly/ 
Quarterly / others – 
please specify)

Purpose and scope of engagement including 
key topics and concerns raised during such 
engagement

No Ongoing

Event based

Shareholders No
Event based
Event based
Ongoing
Event based • Resolution of share related grievances

No

• Phone

Ongoing
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Stakeholder 
Group

Whether 

Vulnerable & 
Marginalized 
Group (Yes/No)

Channels of communication 
(Email, SMS, Newspaper, 
Pamphlets, Advertisement, 
Community Meetings,
Notice Board, Website, Other)

Frequency of 
engagement 
(Annually/ Half yearly/ 
Quarterly / others – 
please specify)

Purpose and scope of engagement including 
key topics and concerns raised during such 
engagement

No
• Phone

Ongoing • Distribution of goods

professionals 
No

Round table discussions, 
Regular

value chain 
partners

No
• Phone

• Meetings

Ongoing • Sourcing related discussions

for engaging suppliers

bodies

No Ongoing

• Various applications, incl. licenses etc.

Ongoing • CSR activities

PRINCIPLE 5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the 
entity:

Category F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total (A) No. of employees / 
workers covered (B)

% 
(B / A)

Total 
(D)

No. of employees / 
workers covered (E)

% 
(E /D)

Employees (other than workers)

225 225 216 216

- - - - - -

Total Employees 225 225 100% 216 216 100%

Workers

1101 1101 1120 1120

- - - - - -

Total Employees 1101 1101 100% 1120 1120 100%



Annual Report 2024-25 35

Com
pany Overview

Director's Report
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate Governance

Procter & Gamble Health Limited Health

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers:

Category

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total 
(A)

Equal to Minimum 
Wage

More than Minimum 
Wage

Total 
(D)

Equal to Minimum 
Wage

More than 
Minimum Wage

No. (B) % (B / A) No. (c) % (C / A) No. (E) % (E /D) No. (F) % (F/ D)

Employees (other than workers)

Permanent 225 Nil Nil 225 Nil 216 Nil Nil 216 100%

Male 161 Nil Nil 161 Nil 160 Nil Nil 160 100%

Female 64 Nil Nil 64 Nil 56 Nil Nil 56 100%

Other than Permanent - - - - - - - - - -

Male - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - -

Workers

Permanent 1101 Nil Nil 1101 Nil 1120 Nil Nil 1120 100%

Male 995 Nil Nil 995 Nil 1010 Nil Nil 1010 100%

Female 106 Nil Nil 106 Nil 110 Nil Nil 110 100%

Other than Permanent* - - - - - - - - - -

Male - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - -

*Other than permanent workers are workers engaged through third-party contractors, and their wages are managed by the third-party 
contractors, who are contractually obligated to comply with legal requirements, including compliance in respect of wages.

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages:

a. Median remuneration / wages:

Male Female

Number Median remuneration / 
salary / wages of respective 

category (` In Lakhs)

Number Median remuneration/ 
salary/ wages of respective 

category (` In Lakhs)

Board of Directors (BoD) 5 16.50 2 8.25

Key Managerial Personnel^ 2 288.69 1 18.16

Employees 161 11.08 64 10.62

Workers 995 2.50 106 2.28

  ^

b. Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages paid by the entity:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Gross wages paid to females as % of total wages 22.22% 14.85%

4. Do you have a focal point responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or contributed 
to by the business?

Respect for Human Rights is fundamental to the way we manage our business. This includes respecting 
and promoting the human rights of our employees, our external business partners, and the communities 
in which we live, serve, and operate. We support the U.N. Guiding Principles for Business and Human 
Rights, which respects and honors the principles of internationally recognized human rights, including 
those rights expressed in the International Bill of Human Rights (i.e., Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 
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of the Rights of Indigenous Peoples.

partners.

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues:

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Number of 
complaints 

the year

Number of 
complaints pending 
resolution at close 

of the year

Remarks Number of 
complaints 

the year

Number of 
complaints pending 
resolution at close 

of the year

Remarks

Nil Nil - 1 Nil -

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Child labour Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

related issues
Nil Nil - Nil Nil -

Redressal) Act, 2013:

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Nil 1

1
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8. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment 
cases:

9. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? 

10. Assessments for the year:

or third parties)

Child labour

from the assessments : 

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity:

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

From renewable sources

- -

- -

Total energy consumed from renewable sources (A+B+C) 18608 GJ 28895 GJ

From non-renewable sources

- - 

Total energy consumption from non-renewable sources (D+E+F) 24901 GJ  37674 GJ 

Total energy consumed (A+B+C+ D+E+F) 43509 GJ 66569 GJ 

` 0.47 0.59

0.11 0.16

No
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Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set 
under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial 
action taken, if any: 

3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water:

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

- -

55155 123718

2754 3642

- -

- -

Total volume of water withdrawal 57909 127360 

Total volume of water consumption 26203 72605

` 0.29 1.13

0.07 0.13

4. Provide the following details related to water discharged:

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

54755 91659

Total water discharged (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 54755 91659

5. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage 
and implementation
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6. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity 

Parameter Please specify unit F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

7.62

3.83 0.58

65.21 195.83

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - -

7. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity 

Parameter Unit F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Metric tonnes of CO2 263 263

Metric tonnes of CO2

turnover 
MT per ` 0.05 0.04

MT per ` 0.01 0.01

8. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide 
details

9. Provide details related to waste management by the entity
(in metric tonnes)

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Total Waste generated

21.96 32.59

0.08 1.71

0.74 0.50

- -

- -

- -

39.17 42.71

21.48 10.10
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(in metric tonnes)

Parameter F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

60.03 -

Paper carton 27.11 47.68

24.52 25.51

1.06 15.91

Total (A + B + C + D + E + F + G + H)  202.35 176.00

Category of waste

109.72 134.81

- -

6.2 -

Total (i + ii + iii) 115.92 134.81

Category of waste 

- -

- -

60.03 84.45

Total (i + ii + iii) 60.03 84.45

No

adopted by your Company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes 
and the practices adopted to manage such wastes

our carbon footprint. 

sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) 
where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details

Sr no Location of Types of 
operations

Whether the conditions of environmental approval / 
clearance are being complied with? (Y/N)

If no, the reasons thereof and corrective action taken, if any. 

Not applicable

12. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable 
laws:

Name and brief details 
of project No. 

Date Whether conducted 
by independent 
external agency 

(Yes / No) 

Results 
communicated 

in  public domain  
(Yes / No)

Relevant 
Web link
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13. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the
Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment
protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances:

that is responsible and transparent

b. List the top trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of

S. No. Name of the trade and industry chambers/ associations Reach of trade and industry chambers / 
associations (State/National)

1 National

2 National

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct
by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities - Not applicable

PRINCIPLE 8 - Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws,

Name and brief 
details of project

SIA

No.

Date of Whether conducted   
by independent 
external agency

(Yes / No)

Results 
communicated in            

public domain
(Yes / No)

Relevant Web 
link

Not applicable

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being
undertaken by your entity:

S. 
No.

Name of Project 
for which R&R is 

ongoing

State District No. of Project 

(PAFs) 

% of PAFs 
covered by R&R  

Amounts paid to 
PAFs in the FY 

(In INR)

Not applicable

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

79 70
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5. Job creation in smaller towns – Disclose wages paid to persons employed in the following locations, as % 
of total wage cost:

Location F.Y. 2024-25

Rural 

Metropolitan 

PRINCIPLE 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback:

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry 
information about Environmental and social parameters relevant to the product, Safe and responsible 
usage, Recycling and/or safe disposal – 

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24

Received 
during the 

year

Pending 
resolution at  
end  of year

Received 
during the 

year

Pending 
resolution  at 

end of year

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Restrictive Trade Practices Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil

549 Nil 130 Nil
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4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Number Reasons for 
recall

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

5. Does the entity have a framework/policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If 
available, provide a web-link of the policy:

.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery 
of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product 
recalls; penalty / action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services:

7. Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Nil

b. Nil

c. Not applicable
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Brief outline of the Company's CSR policy

initiative, SEHAT 

continuing to invest in various health-focused CSR 
SEHAT, projects range 

to those in need. 

Summary of the CSR activities undertaken by the 

1. ‘Gift of Health’ Program (community) - In 
partnership with HelpAge India 

ensuring a holistic approach to healthcare. 

2. The Boat Clinic – In partnership with Karuna 
Trust 

This innovative boat clinic reaches 10 islands 

doctors, 2 nurses, 1 supervisor, and 2 helpers, 

these isolated populations. 

3. Swasthya Sakhi Program – In partnership with 
Public Health Foundation of India (PHFI) 

conduct on-the-spot tests for blood pressure, 

test. The built-in decision support tools further 

ANNEXURE II

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (CSR) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25
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patients.

4. ‘Gift of Health’ Program (Children) – In 
partnership with Catalysts for Social Action

initiative. This collaboration brought vital health 

in 47 Child Care Institutions across 3 states 

being.

5. Daan Utsav 

nd to 8th

6. Maternal and Newborn Health’ for the urban 
poor - In partnership with Apnalaya 

In a bid to bridge the gap in antenatal care for 

registered under the project, and it achieved 

7. 'Yes to Poshan’ Program – In partnership with 
Tata Education and Development Trusts and 
Vijayavahini Charitable Foundation

age. Building on the success of our pilot in 5 

8. Xotej Jeeban Program (meaning Healthy Living) 
– In Partnership with World Vision India 
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9. ‘Gift of Health’ Program- in partnership with Jan Swasthya Sahyog 

.

Name of the Director Designation Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 

during the tenure

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the tenure

Chairperson 1 1

Mr. Milind Thatte 1 1

1 1

Details of CSR activities and compliance during the Financial year 2024-25 are provided below:

The Company conducts 
internal assessments to monitor and evaluate its CSR programs. The requirement of impact assessment 
report is not applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.

Not 
Applicable 

Nil

Nil

` 578.90 lakhs

Nil

Nil 

` 578.90 lakhs 
Nil

Not applicable
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` 1.91 lakhs

Not applicable 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Amount 
(in ` Lakhs)

1 578.90

2 578.90

3 NIL

4 NIL

5 NIL

Sr. 
No.

Unspent amount 
pertaining to 
Financial Year

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
sub-section (6) 
of section 135 
(in ` Lakhs)

Amount Spent 
during the 
preceding 

Financial Year 
2023-2024
(in ` Lakhs)

Balance 
Amount in 

Unspent CSR 
Account as on 
March 31, 2025 

(in ` Lakhs)

Amount transferred to a 

Schedule VII as per second 
proviso to sub-section (5) 

of section 135, if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
Financial 

Years (in `)Amount 
(in `)

Date of 
Transfer

1 2022-23 90 90 -

– NIL

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

their address etc. - Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not applicable

Milind Thatte Lokesh Chandak 
Chairman of the CSR Committee Member of the CSR Committee
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Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i. Ratio of remuneration to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company and % increase in 
remuneration of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel for the Financial Year: 

Name of Director* Designation Total remuneration
(` in lakhs)

% increase in 
remuneration

Ratio to 
median 

remuneration

Independent Director 16.50 7.69 6.23

Independent Director 16.50 7.69 6.23

Mr. S. Madhavan Independent Director 16.25 7.69 6.13

- - -

- - -

Mr. Milind Thatte Managing Director 317.68 5.00 119.95

259.70 7.00 98.06

Ms. Zeal Rupani 18.16 17.00 6.85

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 

iii. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 1,326 as on March 31, 2025

iv. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

managerial remuneration

success.

v. Key Parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by directors:

internal controls.

ANNEXURE III
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

conduct.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS GOVERNANCE

(a) Composition of the Board

investors . The Board 
is of the opinion that all the Independent 

OwnershipIntegrity Trust Leadership Passion for
Winning
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Name of the 
Director

Category Designation No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
companies*

Membership of Board 
Committees of other 

companies **

Directorships in other listed 
companies

Member Chairman

ID 3 Nil Nil -

ID Director 1 1 Nil

Mr. S. Madhavan ID Director 8 5 4

Mr. Milind Thatte ED Managing 
Director

Nil Nil Nil -

ED Director Nil Nil Nil -

NED Director Nil Nil Nil -

NED Director Nil Nil Nil -

ID = Independent Director, ED = Executive Director, NED = Non-Executive Director

Notes:

(b) Meetings of the Board

12, 2025.

(c) Flow of information to the Board 

Managing Director. Detailed agenda is sent to 
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processes.

thereunder, Secretarial Standards and the 

(d) Directors’ attendance record

Name of the Director No. of Board meetings 
held during the tenure

No. of Board 
meetings 
attended

Last Annual General 
Meeting

(Whether Attended) 
3 3
3 3

Mr. S. Madhavan 3 3
Mr. Milind Thatte 3 3

3 3
3 3
3 3

Note:

(e) Familiarization programme for Independent 
Directors

a.  Their roles rights, responsibilities in the 

procedures, Code of Conduct, Internal 
standards, etc.

applicable to the Director, various policies 

Board of Directors to discuss plans and updates 
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have a direct interaction with them. This helps 
the Independent Directors to understand the 
Company’s strategy, business model, operations, 
market, competition, organization structure, risk 
analysis and such other areas.

The Company conducts various sessions on 
knowledge  sharing  &  familiarization  for  the 
Directors  of  the  Company  on topics which are 
relevant to the functioning of the Company from 
time to time.

The details of the familiarization programmes 
held during the year are available on the 

Experience of healthcare 
industry

Healthcare Domain 
Expertise

Experience of regulatory 
advisory, policy formulation 
& implementation, public 
administrative experience

Regulatory policy 
Expertise

Experience of leading the 
companies as CEO or part 
of Senior management 
or as Functional leader 
with strategic or business 
operations expertise

Experience in digital, 
technology driven 
businesses

Strategy/Business 
operation Expertise

management with 
appropriate professional 

in Finance, Chartered 

Finance and 

of law, litigation or 
advisory with appropriate 

Company’s website at https://www.pghealthindia.
com/investors/#familiarisationProgramme

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and 
selling of healthcare products. It is ensured that 

combined provides a portfolio of experience, 
expertise and knowledge that serves Company’s 
purpose, at its best. The following skills, expertise 

- - -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
*Directors on Board of the Company as on March 31, 2025.
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(g) Annual evaluation of the Directors and separate 
meeting of Independent Directors

their duties. The attendance of the Independent 

Name of Independent Director Whether attended

No

Mr. S. Madhavan

upon.

(h) Stock Options

(i) Remuneration of Directors

The  Independent  Directors  are  paid  sitting 

th

` 10.5 lacs to Independent Directors.

Directors on severance of Directorship of the 
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`

Name of the Director Relationship with 
other Directors

Remuneration^ Commission Sitting 
Fees

Shares held (Equity 
Shares of ` 10/- each)*

None - 10.50 6.00 5,914

None - 10.50 6.00 -

Mr. S. Madhavan None - 10.50 5.75 -

Mr. Milind Thatte None 317.68 - - -

None 259.70 - - -

None - - - -

None - - - -

*

^

(j) Related Party Transactions

(k) Succession planning
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(l) Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

Members of the 
Committee

Category No. of 
meetings 

held during 
tenure

No. of 
meetings 
attended

ID 3 3

ID 3 3

Mr. Madhavan ID 3 3

Mr. Milind Thatte ED 3 3

ID= Independent Director, ED = Executive Director

reference

advice

parties

reporting process and the disclosure of its 

credible

auditors

  • Major accounting entries involving 
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transactions

report.

of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 

candidate

creditors

etc. of the candidate

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Members of the 
Committee

Category No. of 
meetings 

held during 
tenure

No. of 
meetings 
attended

ID 1 1

Mr. S. Madhavan** ID 1 1

Mr. Milind Thatte ED 1 1

ED 1 1

ID= Independent Director, ED = Executive Director

receipt of annual report, non- receipt of declared 
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redressing investor grievances.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

12, 2025. 

Members of the 
Committee

Category No. of 
meetings 

held during 
tenure

No. of 
meetings 
attended

ID 2 2

ID 2 2

NED 2 2

ID= Independent Director, NED = Non-Executive Director

independence of Directors

evaluation of Independent Directors and the 
Board

applicable rules thereto and Regulation 19 of the 

.

diverse and inclusive culture.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

2024.
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Members of the 
Committee

Category No. of 
meetings 

held during 
tenure

No. of 
meetings 
attended

ID 3 3

Mr. Milind Thatte ED 3 3

ED 3 3

ID= Independent Director, ED= Executive Director

to be incurred on the CSR activities

Risk Management Committee

Members of the 
Committee

Category No. of 
meetings 

held during 
tenure

No. of 
meetings 
attended

Mr. Milind Thatte* ED 3 3

ID 3 3

Mr. S. Madhavan ID 3 3

ID 3 3

ED 3 3

ID= Independent Director, ED= Executive Director

the nature and content of its discussions, 
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as appropriate. 

OTHER INFORMATION:

I. Particulars of senior management of the 
Company as on March 31, 2025

Name of SMP Designation

Mr. Siddhartha Vachaspati Sales Director

Planning leader

Mr. Nilesh Barbade Distributor Operations 

Ms. Zeal Rupani

II. Disclosures regarding re-appointment of 
Directors

Ms. Seema Sambasivan, Director 

th

III. Annual Report and Notice calling the Meeting

at 

address.

IV. Declaration of Financial Result

V. Communication with respect to deduction of tax 
on dividend income

to its shareholders at the applicable rates. In 
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at

VI. Green Initiative

VII. Updation of KYC

3, 2021 and relevant circulars thereafter, latest 

.

response and assistance in this regard.

VIII. Share Transfer and Demat system

shall not be processed unless the securities 

given to the respective depositories i.e. National 

IX. Alternate Dispute Redressal Mechanism
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GENERAL MEETINGS

For the 
Financial 

Year

Date Time Venue No. of 
special 

resolutions 
passed

2021-22 None

2022-23 None

2023-24 None

POSTAL BALLOT

1.  Appointment of Mr. Sharad Tyagi (DIN 00371842) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, 

Particulars No. of Votes 
(Physical 

ballots and 
e-voting)

Votes Cast 
(No. of 
Shares)

% of Votes

373 1,12,78,798 99.99

Dissented to the resolution 16 454 0.01

389 1,12,79,252 100.00

section.

for resolution of disputes arising in the securities 

resolution of the grievance, if the Shareholder 

initiate dispute resolution through the ODR 
Portal at . Investors are 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

Regulations, 2015.
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2.  Appointment of Ms. Krishna Sarma (DIN 00016115) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Particulars No. of Votes 
(Physical 

ballots and 
e-voting)

Votes Cast 
(No. of 
Shares)

% of Votes

366 1,12,76,270 99.97

Dissented to the resolution 21 2,971 0.03

387 1,12,79,241 100.00

Procedure for Postal Ballot:

Regulations 2015, Sections 108, 110 and other 

Shareholders. The Shareholders had an option to 

2013 and the Rules issued thereunder. Voting rights 

close of business hours on the last date of e-voting. 

, 

Postal Ballot as on the date of this Report.

MD / CFO CERTIFICATION

ADOPTION OF DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

opinion.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
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telephone, email, or web reporting around the world 

an independent company and can take calls in most 
languages. Reports of actual or suspected violations 
may also be made anonymously, where allowed by 
applicable law. The Worldwide Business Conduct 
Helpline is accessible to all employees. The Audit 
Committee oversees the vigil mechanism and cases 
reported along with status report and action taken 
(if any) are reported to the Committee. No personnel 
has been denied access to the Committee.

The Vigil mechanism report is available on the 
Company's website at www.pghealthindia.com/
investors/#policies.

CODE OF CONDUCT

(i) Code of Conduct for Directors

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for 
its Directors and Senior Management. This Code 
is derived from three interlinked fundamental 
principles, viz. good corporate governance, good 
corporate citizenship and exemplary personal 
conduct. The Board Members and Senior 

compliance with the Code of Conduct and a 

is annexed to this Corporate Governance Report. 
The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior 
Management has been hosted on the Company’s 
website. A declaration signed by the Managing 

this Report.

(ii) Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading

The Board of the Company has adopted Code 
of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in 
compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015 to regulate, monitor 
and report trading by the Designated Person(s) 
/ and other connected person(s). The structured 
digital database of unpublished price sensitive 
information is maintained with adequate internal 
controls. The code has been hosted on  the 
Company’s website at https://www.pghealthindia.
com/investors/#policies

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

I. Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to the circulars issued by the Ministry 

Board of India, the 58th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company will be held on Friday, August 29, 
2025 at 11.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing 
facility. Deemed Venue for Meeting shall be the 

Cardinal Gracias Road, Chakala, Andheri East, 
Mumbai - 400 099. Instructions for joining 
and participating in the meeting through video 
conferencing is provided in the notice for 
convening the 58th Annual General Meeting. 
A copy of the transcript of the Annual General 
Meeting will be made available on the Company’s 
website at https://www. pghealthindia.com/
investors/#annual-general- meeting.

II. Financial Calendar

The Financial Year of the Company has been 
changed from "July 1st – June 30th” period to 
“April 1st – March 31st” period. Accordingly, the 
Financial Year of the Company for purpose of 
this report viz., 2024-25 is a period of 9 months 
commencing on July 1, 2024, and ending on March 
31, 2025. The Financial Results are declared 
within timelines as prescribed by the Securities 

III. Record Date: Record date for payment of 
dividend, if declared at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, shall be Friday, August 22, 2025.

IV. Dividend Payment Date: On or before September 
25, 2025.

V. Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the 
Company: Total fees of ̀  43 lacs for Financial Year 
2024-25, was paid by the Company to Haribhakti 

VI. Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

for dealing with complaints relating to sexual 
harassment at workplace. No complaints related 
to sexual harassment of women at workplace 
were received during the Financial Year 2024-25.

VII. Recommendations of Committees of the Board 

There were no instances during the Financial Year 
2024-25, wherein the Board had not accepted 
recommendations made by any Committee of 
the Board.

VIII. ISIN Code: INE179A01014
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IX. Distribution of shareholding by ownership as on March 31, 2025

Category Number of shares held  % of shares held

86,01,071 51.82

Resident Individuals and others 38,29,042 23.08

17,48,954 10.54

765 0.00

5,76,478 3.47

11,39,975 6.86

Private Corporate Bodies 2,92,430 1.76

4,10,667 2.47

TOTAL 1,65,99,382 100.00

X. Distribution of shareholding by size class as on March 31, 2025

Shareholding Shareholders Shares

Number % to Total Number % to Total

1 - 500 54657 97.97 23,68,341 14.27

501 - 1000 604 1.08 4,40,328 2.65

1001 - 2000 274 0.49 3,95,989 2.39

2001 - 3000 66 0.12 1,64,107 0.99

3001 - 4000 41 0.07 1,41,672 0.85

4001 - 5000 24 0.04 1,11,967 0.68

5001 - 10000 59 0.11 3,98,912 2.40

65 0.12 1,25,78,066 75.77
TOTAL 55790 100.00 1,65,99,382 100.00

XI. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The Company’s shares are required to be compulsorily traded in the stock exchanges in dematerialized 
form. As on March 31, 2025, the number of shares in dematerialized and physical mode are as under:

Particulars No. of shares % to total capital issued

1,56,00,866 93.98

8,98,179 5.41

1,00,337 0.61

Total 1,65,99,382 100.00

XII. Unclaimed dividend
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Date of Declaration For the Financial 
year ended

Due Date for 
transfer to IEPF

01.06.2018 2017 07.07.2025

31.05.2019 2018 06.07.2026

26.11.2020 2019-20 01.01.2028

11.11.2021 2020-21 17.12.2028

05.05.2022 11.06.2029

23.11.2022 2021-22 30.12.2029

05.02.2023 14.03.2030

30.11.2023 2022-23 04.01.2031

06.02.2024 13.03.2031

05.12.2024 2023-24 11.12.2031

12.02.2025 18.02.2032

account, other relevant details to reduce the 

inter alia, has been sending 

respect of the dividend or shares so transferred.

transferring ` 12,99,452 and corresponding 3,744 

. 
Ms.

XIII.Disclosure in respect of equity shares transferred 
to the Company's unclaimed Suspense Account 
is as under:



68 Annual Report 2024-25

Procter & Gamble Health LimitedHealth

Transaction Particulars No. of 
shareholders

No. of Equity 
Shares

Opening 
Balance

2 319

7 700

2 89

Closing 
Balance

7 930

XIV. Other Disclosures

XV. Plant Location

XVI.Investor Queries and Grievance Redressal

Procter & Gamble Health Limited
Ms. Zeal Rupani

Registered Address:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
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DECLARATION

Milind Thatte
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with paragraph E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To,

Procter & Gamble Health Limited  

Procter & Gamble Health Limited

DHOLAKIA & ASSOCIATES LLP

CS Nrupang B. Dholakia
Managing Partner

th
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS    

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

PROCTER & GAMBLE HEALTH LIMITED
CIN: : L99999MH1967PLC013726

Maharashtra, India.

PROCTER & GAMBLE HEALTH LIMITED L99999MH1967PLC013726

st

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 
in Company*

1. 00001456
2. 07070938
3. Milind Vasant Thatte 08092990
4. 08468145
5. 06451889
6. 10083315
7. 10085866

#

Saraf & Associates

K.G. SARAF
Proprietor
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

To,
The Members,
Procter & Gamble Health Limited 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
Procter & Gamble Health Limited

(CIN L99999MH1967PLC013726) 
period ended 31st

A.
i. Maintenance of secretarial record is the 

opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit.

reasonable assurances about the correctness 
of the contents of the secretarial records. The 

basis of our opinion.

regulations, happening of events, etc.

test basis.

B.

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 

period covering the period ended on 31st March, 

C.

on 31st

audit period.

prescribed under the Securities and 



Com
pany Overview

Director's Report
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate Governance

73Annual Report 2024-25

Procter & Gamble Health Limited Health

Regulations, 2015.

the activities during the audit period as 

2018;

2021;

Regulations, 2021.

D.

i. Secretarial Standards in respect of Meetings 

and Independent Directors. The changes in 

schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 

E.
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F.

Resolution passed on 23rd

1st th st st March. 

st

31st

st st

March.

in pursuance to Section 180 of the 

etc.

DHOLAKIA & ASSOCIATES LLP

CS Nrupang B. Dholakia
Managing Partner

th
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REPORT
To the Members of Procter & Gamble Health Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

then ended (refer note 2.2), and notes to the 

statements”).

Basis for Opinion

our report. We are independent of the Company in 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Sr. 
No.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1.
contingencies:

years which are at various stages and pending 

price of various pharma products. With respect to 

years, the Company has received demand notices 
for overcharging price.

correspondences, independent opinion 

Discussed with the appropriate senior 
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Sr. 
No.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

documentation with the authorities.

and

the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Other Information

for the other information. The other information 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

misstated.

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements

statements that give a true and fair view of the 
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whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

made by management.

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged 
with governance, we determine those matters that 

statements of the current year and are therefore the 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1)

(2)
report that:

Company so far as it appears from our 
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by this report are in agreement with the 

received from the directors as on March 31, 

as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed 

g. With respect to the other matter to 

given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided 
by the Company to its directors during the 

2025 is in accordance with the provisions of 

h. With respect to the other matters to be 

opinion and to the best of our information 

us:

(ii) The Company has made provision, as 

  (iv) (a) The Management has represented 

in the notes to the accounts, no 

or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any 

the Company to or in any other 

with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 

in any manner whatsoever by or on 

  (iv) (b) The management has represented 

the notes to the accounts, no funds 
have been received by the Company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or 

or invest in other persons or entities 

  (iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures 

appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that 

under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
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statements:

the Company during the year is in 

paid by the Company during the year 

(c) The Board of Directors of the 

The amount of dividend proposed 

accounting software for maintaining its 

which has a feature of recording audit 

software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any 

record retention.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

Date: May 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the 
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the 
members of Procter & Gamble Health Limited (“the 

months year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the 
purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 

and written representation given to us by the 

audit, we report that:

(a) (B) The Company has maintained 

having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets.

properties (other than properties where 

Company.

pending against the Company as at March 

under the Prohibition of Benami Property 

thereunder.

parties at the year end, these have 

our opinion, the coverage and procedure 

(b) The Company has not obtained any 

institutions, on the basis of security of 
current assets. Therefore, reporting under 

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has not made 
investments in, provided any guarantee 
or security or granted advances in the 

Partnerships or any other parties. During 

(`

Sr 
No

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the 
nature of loans

1 Aggregate amount granted / provided 
during the year

- Joint Ventures
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---

---
---
---
171

---
---
---
---
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Sr 
No

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in the 
nature of loans

2 Balance outstanding as at March 31, 
2025 in respect of above cases

- Joint Ventures
---
---
---
---

---
---
---
---

---
---
---
1 187

---
---
---
---

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been 

such records and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained. We have, 

of the cost records with a view to determine 

the appropriate authorities, undisputed 

the year end, for a period of more than 

(b) The dues outstanding with respect 

(b)

during the year are, prima facie, not 

The Company has not made investment, 

and provided security to any other entity 
during the year.

(c)
and payment of interest in respect of the 

(d)
no overdue amount remaining outstanding 

(e)

given to the same parties.

(f)

any terms or period of repayment.

any investment or provided any guarantee 
or security, covered under the provisions of 

any deposits or amounts which are deemed 
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(viii) We have not come across any transactions 

(a)

(b)

institution or government or any 
government authority.

(c) The Company did not obtain any money 

(d)
statements of the Company, no funds 
raised on short-term basis have, been 

Company.
(e) The Company does not have any 

(f) The Company does not have any 

during the year. Therefore, reporting under 

carried out in accordance with the 

come across any instance of fraud by the 
Company nor any fraud on the Company 

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
the dues

Amount
(` In Lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is pending Remarks, 
if any

2 108 2011-12, 2012-13,
2019-20 & 2020-21
2006-07 to 2010-11,

Duty and

2009-10 to 2012-13 
Goa

925

18 2015-16

Goods and 

1 785 2017-18

80 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner

2017-18, 2018-19, 
2019-20 & 2020-21

Deputy Commissioner

795 2017-18 to 2022-23
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has been noticed or reported during the 
year, nor have we been informed of any 
such instance by the management.

Government by the auditors of the 

upto the date of this report.

the Company during the year (and upto 

procedures.

the size and nature of its business.

for the period under audit.

cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with them during the year and 

Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the 

as part of the Group.

the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

this audit report and that the Company is not 

this is not an assurance as to the future 

our reporting is based on the facts up to date 
of the audit report and we neither give any 

Company has transferred the unspent 

period of 30 days from the end of the 

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

Date: May 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of 
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

statements of the Company for the nine months year 
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

Auditors’ Responsibility

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Financial Statements

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements
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misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner

Date: May 29, 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025
Notes As at 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs
Assets
Non-current assets

11 721 
1 096 589 

5 190 

6 71 96 

7 1 017 
8
9 3 506 3 369 
10 291 189 
11 8 781 

Total non-current assets 26 781 27 014 
Current assets

12 10 937 10 911 

13 8 533 
18 208 23 850 

586 
7 159 172 
8 1 751 1 337 
10 6 287 6 133 

110 900 
Total current assets 52 639 52 422 
Total assets 79 420 79 436 
Equity and Liabilities
Equity

15 1 660 1 660 
16 52 036 

Total equity 53 696 53 824 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

17 688 
Provisions 18 3 612 

19 100 69 
Total non-current liabilities 4 193 3 721 
Current liabilities

20 1 208 912 
20 15 952 15 788 

17 281 268 
22 1 666 2 301 

Provisions 18 697 
21
19 1 382 1 253 

Total current liabilities 21 531 21 891 
Total liabilities 25 724 25 612 
Total Equity and Liabilities 79 420 79 436 

2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For HARIBHAKTI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande S. Madhavan Milind Thatte
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Lokesh Chandak Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Date: May 29, 2025
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Notes Financial Year 
(nine months) ended 

March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Income
23 1 15 126 

1 035 1 563 
Total income 94 452 1 16 689 
Expenses

25 20 059 29 023 
26

27 87 

28 21 516 

Finance cost 29 72 

1 669 
30 21 122 

Total expense 63 290 87 338 
31 162 29 351 

--- 2 019 
31 162 27 332 

31
7 763 7 910 

 (860)
7 

Income tax expense 7 721 7 234 
23 441 20 098 

Other comprehensive income

36 (350) 90 

31.2 88 (23)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (262) 67 
Total comprehensive income for the year 23 179 20 165 
Earnings per equity share 32

`  133 
`  121 

`)  10  10 
2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For HARIBHAKTI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande S. Madhavan Milind Thatte
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Lokesh Chandak Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Date: May 29, 2025



Annual Report 2024-2588

Procter & Gamble Health LimitedHealth

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
a. Equity share capital

Amount
` in lakhs

Balance as at 1 July 2023 1 660

--- 
Balance as at 30 June 2024 1 660

--- 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1 660

b. Other equity

Particulars Reserves & surplus

Capital 
Reserve

Securities
Premium

Capital
Redemp-

tion
Reserve

General
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Share 
options 

out-
standing 
account

Total

` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs

Balance as at 1 July 2023     26    1 113     26    34 389    37 091     784    73 429 

--- --- --- --- 20 098 ---    20 098 

--- --- --- --- 67 ---     67 

--- --- --- --- ---     69     69 
Total comprehensive income for the year --- --- --- ---    20 165     69    20 234 

--- --- --- --- --- 
Balance as at 30 June 2024     26    1 113     26    34 389    15 757     853    52 164 

--- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- (262) --- (262)

--- --- --- --- ---     80     80 
Total comprehensive income for the year --- --- --- ---    23 179     80    23 259 

--- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- (95) --- (95)

Transfer from share option outstanding 
account

--- --- --- ---     392 ---     392 

--- --- --- --- --- (392) (392)

during the year
--- --- --- --- --- (52) (52)

Balance as at 31 March 2025     26    1 113     26    34 389    15 993     489    52 036 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For HARIBHAKTI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande S. Madhavan Milind Thatte
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Lokesh Chandak Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Date: May 29, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Particulars  Financial Year 
 (nine months) 

ended 
 March 31, 2025 

 (Audited) 

 Financial Year 
 (twelve months) 

ended 
June 30, 2024

(Audited)

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

 31 162  27 332 

Adjustments for:

 (35) 202 

 59 

 211 270 

 158  1 227 

 1,669 

---  2 019 

 (310)  ( 210)

 36 705 

---  ( 819)

 13 51 

 80 69 

Finance costs 72 

 (1 173)

 32 382  32 559 

Working capital adjustments:

 ( 237)  2 313 

 (6 031)  2 917 

 1 827 

693  (7 161)

 (1 082)  (1 108)

Cash generated from operations  25 001  31 348 

 (8 132)  (8 519)

 16 869  22 829 

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities

 ( 856)  (2 173)

790 

310 210 

715  1 262 

959  ( 687)

C.

Dividend paid

 ( 312)

 (23 474)  (41 811)

 (` ) 
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Particulars  Financial Year 
 (nine months) 

ended 
 March 31, 2025 

 (Audited) 

 Financial Year 
 (twelve months) 

ended 
June 30, 2024

(Audited)

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (5 646)  (19 669)

 23 873  43 542 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  18 227  23 873 

Components of Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year: 

 9 227  8 873 

 9 000  15 000 

 18 227  23 873 

Particulars Financial Year 
(nine months) 

ended March 31, 
2025

` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months) 

ended June 30, 
2024

` in lakhs

Lease Liabilities Lease Liabilities

956 1 199 

(312)

69 

Balance at the end of the year 762 956 

Note:

Note 2

See accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For HARIBHAKTI & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Sumant Sakhardande S. Madhavan Milind Thatte
Partner Chairman Managing Director

Lokesh Chandak Zeal Rupani
Company Secretary

Date: May 29, 2025

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
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1 Corporate information

2.1 Statement of compliance

Meeting.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

goods and services.

those characteristics into account when pricing 

based payment transactions that are within the 

that the entity can access at the measurement 

and

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

in the period in which the estimates are revised 
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processes

(v) Provision and contingencies

(vi) Provision for inventories

Financial Year

year end from June 30 to March 31 of each year 

The Board of Directors of the Company, on 
January 23, 2025, have approved the change of 

a. Revenue recognition

is measured at the transaction price of the 

revenue arrangements since it is the primary 

to estimate and accrue for the discounts and 

schemes and arrangements with customers. 

received by the Company on its own account. 

revenue.

Sale of goods

a. the Company has transferred to the buyer the 

b. the Company retains neither continuing 

c. the amount of revenue can be measured 

e. the costs incurred or to be incurred in 
respect of the transaction can be measured 

Revenue from shared service

costs are incurred, in accordance with the terms 

are accrued each year in which the goods are 

Interest income
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Rental income

Processing income

in accordance with the terms of contract.

b. Leasing

The Company as a lessee

Company assesses whether a contract contains 

To assess whether a contract conveys the right 

Company assesses whether:

(iii)  the Company has the right to direct the use 
of the asset.

the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 

made at or prior to the commencement date 

The Company as a lessor

reference to the right-of-use asset arising from 

c. Foreign currencies
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Transaction and balances

Transactions in currencies other than the 

the end of each reporting period, monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies are 

that are denominated in foreign currencies are 

in the period which they arise.

d. Borrowing costs

which they are incurred.

and performance incentives, are charged 

form of

in the form of

through trust.

The Provident Fund is administered by 

the Fund are charged to revenue and when 

by the Government. The Company has an 

between the return from the investment of 

Government.

carried out by independent actuary. The 
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debit or credit to retained earnings through 
other comprehensive income in the period in 

Past service costs are recognised in the 

of:

  The date that the company recognises 

discount rate at the beginning of the year to 

costs, past-service costs, gains and 

iii)

iv)

when incurred.

v)

of service.

f. Share-based payment arrangements

Company receive remuneration in the form of 

Equity-settled transactions

are granted an option to purchase shares of the 

of options.

note 2.3(e)), together with a corresponding 

period in which the service and performance 

Company.

Employee share purchase plan

been given a right to purchase shares of the 

conditions attached to the scheme.

beginning and end of that period.
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enacted by the end of the reporting period.

reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 

the end of the reporting period.

recognised in other comprehensive income or 

authority.

h. Property, plant and equipment

or for administrative purposes, are stated in 

recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

the Company and the cost of the item can be 

Properties in the course of construction for 
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intended use. Depreciation of these assets, 
on the same basis as other property assets, 
commences when the assets are ready for their 
intended use.

during the period in which they are incurred.

reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 

for on a prospective basis.

than certain assets which are based on the 

Asset Class Useful lives

10-15 years
3-15 years
3-15 years

3-15 years

and the carrying amount of the asset and is 

i. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

to determine whether there is any indication that 

amount is estimated in order to determine the 

cash-generating units, or otherwise they are 

own carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 

the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised 

that the increased carrying amount does not 

recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) 

j. Investment property
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incurred. When part of an investment property 

derecognized either when they have been disposed 

period of de-recognition.

any.

k. Intangible assets

from its use.

appropriate.

l. Non-current assets held for sale

than through continued use.

or depreciated.

m. Inventories

where considered necessary. Cost of inventories 
is determined on weighted average basis. Cost 

incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

of purchases, conversion costs and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
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n. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has 

estimate can be made of the amount of the 

under an insurance contract, the reimbursement 

reimbursement.

goods.

provisions are discounted using a current pre-

is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the 

recognition of income that may never be there.

o. Financial instruments

recognised when the Company becomes a party 

price.

p. Financial assets

assets are recognised and derecognised on a 

other comprehensive income, depending on the 

amortised cost:

Debt instruments that does not meet the above 

the amortised cost of a debt instrument and 
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or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the 

rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired 

occurs within the 12 months after the reporting 

rewards of ownership of the asset to another 

transferred asset, the Company recognises its 
retained interest in the asset and an associated 

and rewards of ownership of a transferred 

received.

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 

between the part it continues to recognise under 

of those parts on the date of the transfer. The 

sum of the consideration received for the part 

other comprehensive income is recognised in the 

been recognised in other comprehensive income 
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of those parts.

a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 

end of each reporting period.

q. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Equity instruments

instruments issued by the Company is recognised 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs.

Financial liabilities

method.

foreign currency and are measured at amortised 
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign 

on the amortised cost of the instrument and are 

Derecognition

transferred asset, the Company recognises its 
retained interest in the asset and an associated 

or the counterparty.
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s. Segment Reporting

of the operating segments of the Company.

t. Cash and Cash Equivalents

u. Research and development

as and when incurred.

other uncertainties, such that, in the opinion of 

v. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

change in resources. 

shares, and the weighted average number of 

w. Claims

3 Critical accounting judgments and key sources 
of estimation uncertainty

 3.1 Critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies

The estimates and associated assumptions are 

to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the 

of the revision and future periods of the revision 

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period 

year.

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

each reporting period.

b. Fair value measurements and valuation 
processes

reporting purposes. The management of 
the Company determines the appropriate 
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The costs of providing pensions and other 

The costs are assessed on the basis of 

e. 

and contingencies as appropriate.

f. 

transactions that are within the scope of 

Customers.

g. Inventories obsolescence

  The factors that the Company considers in 

discontinuances, price changes, ageing of 
inventory and introduction of competitive 

on a periodic basis.
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3.3 Recent accounting pronouncement the new pronouncements and based on its 
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B. Right -of -use assets

Gross Block
` in lakhs

Total
` in lakhs

Balance as at 01 July 2023 1 354 1 354 
--- --- 
--- --- 

Balance as at 30 June 2024 1 354 1 354 
--- --- 
--- --- 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 1 354 1 354 
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 July 2023

Depreciation for the year  271  271 
--- --- 

Balance as at 30 June 2024  511  511 
Depreciation for the year  203  203 

--- --- 
Balance as at 31 March 2025  714  714 
Net block as at 31 March 2025  640  640 
Net block as at 30 June 2024 843 843 

C. Capital work-in-progress

As at 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

1 096 2 091 
--- 
--- (100)

1 096 589 

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
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D. Assets held for sale
`

Particulars Property Plant 
and Equipment

CWIP Total

6 269 7 671 
--- 

Net block as at June 30 2024 1 417 1 402 2 819 
(627) (1 292) (1 919)

Net block as at June 30 2024 790 110 900 
(790) --- (790)

Balance as at 31 March 2025 --- 110 110 

5 Investment property

investment property.

As at
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

Total
` in lakhs

Gross block
Balance as at 01 July 2023 521 521 

--- --- 
--- --- 

Balance as at 30 June 2024 521 521 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 1 011 1 011 
Depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 01 July 2023 296 296 
Depreciation for the year 35 35 
Balance as at 30 June 2024 331 331 
Depreciation for the year 39 39 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 574 574 
Net block as at 31 March 2025 437 437 
Net block as at 30 June 2024 190 190 
Net block as at 30 June 2023 225 225 

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 
2025

` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)
 ended June 30, 

2024
` in lakhs

310 210 
13 15 

--- --- 

297 195 
Depreciation 39 35 

258 160 

4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
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b) Contractual Obligations

c) Fair Value

`

`

d) Policy for Estimation of Fair Value
The Average Market Value

6 Intangible assets

Computer Software 
` in lakhs

Total
` in lakhs

Gross block
Balance as at 01 July 2023 182 182 

50 50 
(71) (71)
(11) (11)

Balance as at 30 June 2024 150 150 
15 15 

--- --- 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 165 165 
Amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 01 July 2023 88 88 

39 39 
(71) (71)
(2) (2)

Balance as at 30 June 2024 54 54 

--- --- 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 94 94 
Net block as at 31 March 2025 71 71 
Net block as at 30 June 2024 96 96 
Net block as at 30 June 2023 94 94 
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7 Loans

 As at 
 March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non-current

Unsecured, considered good  1,017 
 11  11 

 (11)  (11)
1 017  974 

Current
159  172 
--- --- 
159  172 

Notes:

that are:

(ii) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Non-current

Security Deposits

Unsecured, considered good

11 15 

(11) (15)

479  624 

Current

 12  23 

Other receivables

Unsecured, considered good 1 532 

133 

(133)
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 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good 207 --- 

--- 

--- 

1 751 1 337 

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

3 506 3 369 

--- --- 

3 506  3 369 

1st July 2024 to 31st March 2025  Opening 
Balance 

` in lakhs

 Recognised 

loss
` in lakhs

 Recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 
income

` in lakhs

 Closing 
Balance

` in lakhs

702 122 --- 

deposits and advances
(13) ---  128 

1 210 (172) 88 1 126 

967 (39) ---  928 

151 ---  500 

3 369 49 88 3 506 
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1st July 2023 to 30th June 2024 Opening 
Balance

` in lakhs

Recognised 

loss
` in lakhs

Recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 
income

` in lakhs

Closing
Balance

` in lakhs

162 ---  702 

deposits and advances
122  19 --- 

855  378 (23)  1 210 

817  150 ---  967 

576  (226) --- 

2 532 860 (23) 3 369 

10 Other assets

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Non-current
3 --- 

Unsecured, considered good 288  189 
291  189 

Current

Unsecured, considered good 1  1 
--- --- 

1  1 
 180 

75  150 

5 760 5 802 

6 287 6 133 

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

8 781 
8 781 8 419 
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12 Inventories

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
5 383 

727 

3 879 

238 
10 937 10 911 

Notes:

previous year.

13 Trade receivables

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Unsecured, considered good 8 533 

331 

14 871 8 952 

(331)

14 540 8 533 

Movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables  As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

395

--- --- 

 (88)

Balance at end of the year 331 419 
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Ageing for trade receivables as at March 31, 2025 `

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpayment
Not Due Less 

than 6 
months

6 months-
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Total

Undisputed trade 
receivables 

considered good 790 9 --- --- --- 14 540 

61 183 --- 20 3 --- 267 

credit impaired --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Disputed trade receivables

considered good --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

credit impaired --- --- --- --- --- 64 

Sub-Total 13 802 973 9 20 3 64 14 871 

(331)

Total 14 540 

Ageing for trade receivables as at June 30, 2024 ` in lakhs

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less 

than 6 
months

6 
months-

1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Total

Undisputed trade receivables 
considered good 8 109 11 --- --- --- 8 533 

39 15 7 1 357 

credit impaired --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 
Disputed trade receivables
considered good --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

credit impaired --- --- --- --- --- 62 62 
Sub-Total 8 258 452 157 15 7 63 8 952 

(419)

Total 8 533 
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14 Cash and cash equivalent

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

9 227 8 873 
9 000 15 000 
18 227 23 873 

(19)  (23)
18 208 23 850 

14.1 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

 586 
647  586 

for use by the Company.

15 Equity share capital

 As at 
 March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
 June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs
Authorised share capital:

` 10 each  18 00 00 000  18 00 00 000 
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital:

` 10 each  16 59 93 820  16 59 93 820 
 16 59 93 820  16 59 93 820 

15.1 Fully paid equity shares

Number of 
shares

Share Capital
` in lakhs

Balance at June 30, 2023  1 65 99 382 1 660 
--- --- 

Balance at June 30, 2024  1 65 99 382 1 660 
--- --- 

Balance at March 31, 2025  1 65 99 382 1 660 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
`
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disinvestment.

15.2 Details of shares held by ultimate holding company / holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates

As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
June 30, 2024

Ultimate Holding Company
--- --- 

Holding Company

86 01 071 shares)]

 8 60 10 710  8 60 10 710 

Note:

15.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the company

As at March 31, 2025 As at June 30, 2024
Number of 

shares held
% holding 
of equity 

shares

Number of 
shares held

% holding 
of equity 

shares

`

86 01 071 86 01 071 

15.4 Details of shareholdings by the Promoter’s of the company

As at March 31, 2025 As at June 30, 2024 % change 
during the 

year 
 Number of 
shares held 

 % of total 
shares 

 Number of 
shares held 

% of total 
shares

86 01 071  51.82 86 01 071  51.82 --- 

Total Promoters 
shareholding

86 01 071  51.82 86 01 071  51.82 --- 

Total shares outstanding 86 01 071  51.82 86 01 071  51.82 --- 
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16 Other equity

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Reserves & surplus

26 26 

26 26 

1 113 1 113 

853 

15 993 15 757 

52 036 52 164 

16.1 Capital Reserve

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

26 26 
Movement during the year --- --- 
Balance at the end of year 26 26 

Capital Reserve balance represents

- `

- `

- `

16.2 Capital redemption reserve

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

26 26 

Movement during the year --- --- 

Balance at the end of year 26 26 

16.3 Securities premium

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

1 113 1 113 

Movement during the year --- --- 

Balance at the end of year 1 113 1 113 
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16.4 Share options outstanding account

As at 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

853 

80 69 

(52) --- 

(392) --- 

Balance at the end of year 489 853 

16.5 General reserve

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Movement during the year --- --- 

Balance at the end of year 34 389 34 389 

16.6 Retained earnings

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

15 757 37 091 
20 098 

(262) 67 

Transfer from share option outstanding account 392 --- 
(95) --- 

Balance at the end of year 15 993 15 757 

` `
`

`
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` `

` `

17 Lease liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Non-Current
688 

481 688 
Current

281 268 
281 268 

The movement in Lease liabilities (Non-current and Current) is as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Balance as at beginning of the year 956 1 199 
--- --- 

69 
(312)

--- --- 
762 956 

D.  The Company incurred for the year ended March 31, 2025 ` `

` ` 312 

18 Provisions

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs
2 168 

TOTAL 4 309 3 988 

(a)
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Current 697 
3 612 
4 309 3 988 

(b) Other provisions

ii) Other provisions

Other provisions* Opening 
Balance

Additions 
during year

Utilisations Reversals Closing 
Balance

Provisions in respect of indirect --- --- --- 

(18) --- 

325 (370) (303) 1 716 

(2 852) 1 682 --- 

19 Other liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Non-current
100 69 
100 69 

Current
3 

1 302 
77 --- 

--- 8 
1 382 1 253 

20 Trade payables

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

1 208 912 

enterprises
15 952 15 788 

17 160 16 700 
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Ageing for trade payables as at March 31, 2025
`

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not Due Less 
than
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Total

--- --- --- --- 1 208 

8 029 870 10 1 --- 15 952 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Sub-Total 8 029 8 156 964 10 1 --- 17 160 

Ageing for trade payables as at June 30, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not Due Less 
than
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 
years

More 
than

3 years

Total

--- 730 182 --- --- --- 912 

8 752 193 56 --- 15 788 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Sub-Total 8 752 5 363 2 336 193 56 --- 16 700 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

345 345 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

777 1 570 

586 

1 666 2 301 
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23 Revenue from operations

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

91 809 

 28 
 13  20 

1 567 2 133 
93 417 1 15 126 

Reconciliation of Revenue from Sale of products:

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Contracted Price 1 01 299 
10 798 

Revenue from Sale of products 91 809 1 12 949 

24 Other income

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Interest income earned on:
1 173 

704 1 173 

attributable to such income)
--- 27 
331 363 
331 390 

Total 1 035 1 563 

25 Cost of raw and packing materials consumed

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

20 059 29 023 

26 Purchase of Stock in trade (Traded goods)

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

4 716 3 946 
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Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Inventories at the beginning of year

727 1 356 

6 197 6 284 

Inventories at the end of year

3 879 

727 

4 722 6 197 

Net Decrease/ (Increase) 1 475 87 

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

12 297 18 863 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
(refer note 36)

1 307 1 596 

175 

1 089 1 520 

(662) (697)

14 206 21 516 

29 Finance costs

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Interest costs:

72 

43 72 
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Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

Consumption of store and spares 131 665 
Processing charges 2 958 

582 850 
Freight, transport, warehousing and distribution charges 1 168 1 739 

28 37 
251 2 269 

56 

196 316 
281 523 

89 
5 265 

1 830 2 228 
1 233 

3 102 
Communication costs 166 

815 
3 029 3 252 

Director commission and sitting fees 50 67 
Payment to auditors (refer note 30.1)

261 386 
579 535 

16 --- 
211 270 
59 
13 51 

1 609 
21 122 29 954 

30.1 Payments to auditors:

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

For audit 30 30 
9 9 

43 43 
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30.2Corporate Social Responsibility

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

during the year
 579 539 

--- --- 

(b) For purposes other than (a) above 535 

--- 5 

--- 

--- --- 

--- --- 

year and previous year.

`

to ` ` 

2013.

31.1

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 
2025

` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)
 ended June 30, 

2024
` in lakhs

7 763 7 910 

7 

7 770 8 094 

(860)

(49) (860)

7 721 7 234 
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Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

comprehensive income
88 (23) 

88 (23) 

88 (23) 

31.3

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

31 162 27 332 

6 879 

--- --- 

161 186 

(23) (15)

(267) --- 

7 714 7 050 

7 

7 721 7 234 

32 Earnings per share

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
June 30, 2024

of the year
 1 65 99 382  1 65 99 382 

year
 1 65 99 382  1 65 99 382 

earnings per share

 1 65 99 382  1 65 99 382 



127

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Com
pany Overview

Director's Report
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate Governance

Annual Report 2024-25

Procter & Gamble Health Limited Health

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

20 098 

Earnings used in calculation of basic and diluted 
earnings per share

23 441 20 098 

32.1 Basic and Diluted earnings per share

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` per share

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

` 10)  133 

` 10)  133 

` 10)  121 

` 10)  121 

33 Segment information

33.1 General Information

33.2 Geographical segment information

Revenue from operations Segment assets
Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

87 052 1 05 873 12 998 

6 365 9 253 --- --- 

93 417 1 15 126 12 998 13 439 
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34 Financial instruments & related disclosures

34.1 Capital management

or issue new shares.

`
As at March 31, 2025 Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
--- --- 1 017 1 017 --- --- --- ---
--- --- --- --- --- ---
--- --- --- --- --- ---
--- --- 18 208 18 208 --- --- --- ---
--- --- --- --- --- ---
--- --- 159 159 --- --- --- ---
--- --- 1 751 1 751 --- --- --- ---
--- --- 36 801 36 801 --- --- --- ---

Financial liabilities
    762     762 --- --- --- --- 

--- ---    17 160    17 160 --- --- --- --- 
--- ---    1 666    1 666 --- --- --- --- 
--- ---    19 588    19 588 --- --- --- --- 

`
As at June 30, 2024 Carrying amount Fair value

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
--- --- --- --- --- --- 
--- --- --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 8 533 8 533 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 23 850 23 850 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 586 586 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 172 172 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 1 337 1 337 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 36 076 36 076 --- --- --- --- 

Financial liabilities
--- --- 956 956 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 16 700 16 700 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 2 301 2 301 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- 19 957 19 957 --- --- --- --- 
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34.3 Fair value measurements

34.4 Financial risk management objectives

34.4.1 Credit risk management

Trade and other receivables

monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the 

note 13.

is as per note 13.
Cash and cash equivalents

ongoing basis and is considered to be good.
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34.4.2 Liquidity risk management

Less than 
1 Year

Between 1 
to 5 Years

Over 5 
years

Total Carrying 
Value

` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs ` in lakhs
As at March 31, 2025

281 --- 762 762 
17 160 --- --- 17 160 17 160 
1 666 --- --- 1 666 1 666 

As at June 30, 2024
268 688 --- 956 956 

16 700 --- --- 16 700 16 700 
2 301 --- --- 2 301 2 301 

  34.4.3 Market risk

operating activities in foreign currencies.

   (i) Foreign currency risk management

    Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its 

currency of the Company.
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Particulars Currency Amount in rupees Amount in foreign currency

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

1 519 1 377 18 17 

381 19 

800 690 9 8 

119 378 1 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

change on foreign currency rates.

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

As at March 31, 2025

72 (72) 72 (72)

163 (163) 163 (163)

As at June 30, 2024

69 (69) 69 (69)

0.3 (0.3) 0.3 (0.3)

   (ii) Interest rate risk management

As at 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

--- ---
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(iii) Other price risk management

35 Share-based payments

a) International Stock Ownership Plan (Stocks of the Ultimate Holding Company)

`
`

amounts to ` `

b) Employees Stock Options Plan (Stocks of the Ultimate Holding Company)

Financial Year 
(nine months)

ended March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

 ended June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

payment transactions
81 137 

transactions
81 137 
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Movements during the year

 Financial Year 
(nine months) 

 Financial Year 
(nine months)

Estimated 
fair value of 

optionsgranted 
per unit

 Financial 
Year (twelve 

months) 

 Financial 
Year (twelve 

months) 

Estimated 
fair value of 

optionsgranted 
per unit

Number WAEP (in $) in ` Number 
Previous period

WAEP 
(in $)

in `

year

27 689 165 --- 152 --- 

Granted during the year

350 3 062 --- --- --- 

610 173 --- --- --- 

2 521 173 3 112 --- --- --- 

--- --- --- 153 

--- --- --- 3 328 2 853 

--- --- --- 879 12 109 

(1 336) --- (1 632) --- --- 

(8 162) --- --- --- --- --- 

Outstanding at end of 21 672  170 --- 27 689  165 --- 

--- 15 076 --- 

` `

 As at March 
31, 2025 

As at June 
30, 2024 

the Company is reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. 
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a) Gratuity Plan (Funded)

with regard to the assets of the trust.

b) Provident Fund (Funded)

d) Compensated absences (Unfunded)

the end of the year.

e) Long term service award (Unfunded)
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period on government bonds. 

A. The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuations as at
 March 31, 2025  June 30, 2024 

Discount rate:

Demographic Assumptions

are as follows:

Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months) 

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

Gratuity Plan (Funded)

Current service cost 365 
Past service cost --- --- 

379 465 
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Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months) 

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

152 353 

(260)

demographic assumptions
--- --- 

(6)

comprehensive income (B)
 350 (90)

Total (C = (A+B)) 729 376 

Compensated absence plan (Unfunded)

Current service cost 172 98 

Past service cost --- 292 

23 15 

29 (70)

--- --- 

224 334 

Current service cost 2 

2 --- 

4 4 

--- 

--- 

comprehensive income (F)
--- --- 

Total (G = (E + F)) 4 4 

Long Term Service Award (Unfunded)

Current service cost 93 72 

--- --- 

37 35 
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Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months) 

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

9 

173 116 

780 920 

Comprehensive Income (B+F)
350 (90)

C. The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Gratuity Plan (Funded)
5 381 

832 426 
Compensated absence plan (Unfunded)

653 
653 469 

37 33 
37 33 

Long term service award (Unfunded)
572 

646 572 

Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

Gratuity Plan (Funded)
5 226 

Current service cost 365 
237 320 

152 295 
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Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

(260)

demographic assumptions
--- 59 

(322) (1 310)
5 381 4 745 

Compensated absence plan (Unfunded)
287 

Current service cost 172 98 
--- 292 
22 15 
28 (70)

(151)
653 471 

33 29 
Current service cost 2 

2 --- 

assumptions
--- 

--- 

37 33 
Long term service award (Unfunded)

572 529 
Current service cost 93 72 
Past service cost --- --- 

37 35 

9 

(100) (73)
646 572 
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E. Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Financial Year 
(nine months) 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

June 30, 2024 
` in lakhs

Gratuity Plan
3 865 

223 271 

6 

Closing fair value of plan assets 4 549 4 320 

F. The fair value of the plan assets for plan at the end of the reporting period for each category, are 
as follows:

Gratuity Plan
As at 

March 31, 2025 
` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Total 4 549 4 320 

`
`

` `

Gratuity Plan
` in lakhs

Within 1 year

1 - 2 year 572 

2 - 3 year 687 

729 

816 

5 - 10 years 3 973 

G. Sensitivity analysis

Gratuity Plan (Funded)

by ` ` `
(increase by `
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` `
` `

Compensated absence plan (Unfunded)

by ` ` `
by `

increase by ` ` `
(decrease by `

by ` ` `
by  `

` ` ` 1.28 
`

Long term service award (Unfunded)

by ` ` `
by `

increase by ` ` `
(increase by `

from prior years.

at March 31, 2025.



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (NINE MONTHS) ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Com
pany Overview

Director's Report
Financial Statem

ents
Corporate Governance

Annual Report 2024-25

Procter & Gamble Health Limited Health

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

 As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

--- --- 

 671  780 

--- --- 

--- --- 

Valuations as at

 March 31, 2025  June 30, 2024 

The fair value of the plan assets for plan at the end of the reporting period / year for each category, are as 
follows:

Provident Fund
Financial Year 
(nine months)

March 31, 2025
` in lakhs

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

June 30, 2024
` in lakhs

7 303 6 538 

2 158 2 025 

Total 15 119 14 024 

37 Related party disclosures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

Relationship Name of the Company
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(b) Other parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year.

(i) Fellow Subsidiaries

S. 
No.

Name of the Company S. 
No.

Name of the Company

1 8

2 9

3 10
11

5 12

6 13

7
Company

(iii) Key Management Personnel of the Company:

S. No. Name Designation
1
2
3

Managing Director
5
6
7
8
9
10

Note:

(c) Details of related party transactions between the Company and its related parties are as under:

`
S. 
No.

Nature of Transactions Nine 
months / 

Year ended

Ultimate 
Holding & 

Holding 
Company

Fellow 
Subsidiary 
Companies

Key 
Managerial
Personnel

Post 
Employment 

1 Purchase of Goods 2025 --- 969 --- --- 
--- 663 --- --- 

2 2025 --- --- --- --- 
--- --- --- 

3 2025 --- 2 165 --- --- 
--- 3 270 --- --- 

2025 --- --- --- --- 
--- (23) --- --- 
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`
S. 
No.

Nature of Transactions Nine 
months / 

Year ended

Ultimate 
Holding & 

Holding 
Company

Fellow 
Subsidiary 
Companies

Key 
Managerial
Personnel

Post 
Employment 

5 2025 148 2 741 --- --- 
69 --- --- 

6 2025 1 567 --- --- --- 
2 133 --- --- --- 

7 2025 122 1 491 --- --- 
29 1 295 --- --- 

8 Business Process 2025 --- 1 229 --- --- 
--- --- --- 

9 2025 1 830 --- --- --- 
2 228 --- --- --- 

10 Dividend Paid 2025 12 041 --- --- --- 
21 503 --- --- --- 

11 Contribution to provident 
fund

2025 --- --- --- 1 608 

--- --- --- 1 937 
12 2025 --- 815 --- --- 

--- --- --- 
13 2025 --- 349 --- --- 

--- --- --- 
2025 --- 100 --- --- 

--- --- --- --- 
15 2025 --- 157 --- --- 

--- --- --- --- 
16 # 2025 --- --- 595 --- 

--- --- 607 --- 
17

Commission
2025 --- --- 50 --- 

--- --- 69 --- 
Outstanding as at year

18 Trade and other 2025 633 2 778 --- --- 
682 1 212 --- --- 

19 2025 517 815 --- --- 
1 305 --- --- 
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(d) Disclosure in respect of material transactions of the same type with related parties during the year:

` in lakhs
S. 
No.

Nature of Transactions Financial Year 
(nine months)
ended March 

31, 2025

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

ended June 
30, 2024

1 Purchase of Goods

72 196 

298 

599 --- 

2 Purchase of Equipment/Assets/Spares

--- 

3 Sale of Products

2 165 3 270 

4

--- (23)

5

1 160 

1 189 

208 289 

126 

58 5 

148 69 

6 Service rendered

1 567 2 133 

7

147 

371 

122 29 

10 20 

38 35 

925 718 

--- 29 

--- 3 

8

1 229 

9 Royalty

1 830 2 228 

10 Dividend Paid

12 041 21 503 

11 Contribution to provident fund

(on payment basis)
1 608 1 937 
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` in lakhs
S. 
No.

Nature of Transactions Financial Year 
(nine months)
ended March 

31, 2025

Financial Year 
(twelve months)

ended June 
30, 2024

12

815 

13

349 

14 Security Deposit taken

100 --- 

15 Rental Income

157 --- 

16 Managerial Remuneration

318 322 

260 270 

18 15 

17 Director’s sitting fees and Commission

17 23 

17 23 

16 23 

(d) Disclosure in respect of material transactions of the same type with related parties during the year:

S. 
No.

Nature of Transactions - Balance sheet As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
June 30, 2024

18 Balance payables

114 376 

135 131 

199 197 

79 250 

49 179 

517 

192 75 

47 97 

19 Balance receivable

1 746 532 

633 682 

271 97 

36 5 

713 535 

12 
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38 Operating lease arrangements

38.1 Company as a lessor

38.1.1 Leasing arrangements

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets:

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

Gross carrying amount 521 521 

--- 

(331) (331)

--- 

Net carrying amount 190 

Depreciation for the year 39 35 

38.2.2 Non-cancellable operating lease receivables

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024

` in lakhs

Within one year 286 236 

20 197 

--- --- 

Total 306 433 

   During the year, an amount of ` `

39 Commitments

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

505 631 

505 631 
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40 Contingent liabilities 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

a) Claims against company not acknowledged as debts

11 575 

1 317 1 359 

5 153 

810 292 

18 229 16 250 

b)

c)

d)
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41 Accounting Ratios*

No. Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator Financial 
Year 

(nine 
months) 

ended 
March 31, 

2025

Financial 
Year 

(twelve 
months)

ended 
June 30, 

2024

Change
for changes 
over 25% in 
the ratios, if 
any

1 Current assets  2.39 

2 --- --- ---

3
for debt service service

--- --- ---

due to cost 
optimisation

5
inventory

 8.55 

6
turnover

 8.10 

with previous 
period due to 
change in span 

year

7
turnover Purchases

 1.63 

8
turnover

 3.00  3.77 

9

due to cost 
optimisation

10  0.51 

11
investment

Time Weighted  0.06  0.05 

42 Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

912 

the end of the accounting year
3 2 

10 752 

--- --- 
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As at 
March 31, 2025

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs

60 

(e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of the accounting year

--- --- 

(refer note 22)

43

43

44 Dividend

As at 
March 31, 2025 

` in lakhs

As at 
June 30, 2024 

` in lakhs
Dividend on equity shares paid during the year

` ` 50) per 
` 10 each

9 960 8 300 

` ` 200) 
` 10 each

13 280 33 199 

Total 23 240 41 499 

of ` `
dividend payout of `

45

46  Transfer pricing
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47

to amended Schedule III:

b) Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets

48 (b)

1961).

48

Nature of 
transactions 
with struck 

Transaction 
during the 

year

As at 
March 

31, 2025

As at 
June 

30, 2024

Relationship 
with struck 

if any to be 
dislcosed

 10  0 --- 
vendor

Purchases  267 1 --- 
vendor

Purchases  1 --- --- 
vendor

48 (d) Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium:

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company 
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49

` `

` `

50 a.

b.

51 Figures for the previous year have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform current 
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